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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Inflation Adjusted
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

It is the Directors’ responsibility to ensure that the inflation adjusted annual financial statements
fairly present the state of affairs of the Company. The external auditors are responsible for
independently reviewing and reporting on the inflation adjusted financial statements.

The Directors have assessed the ability of the Company to continue to operate as a going
concern and believe that the preparation of these financial statements on a going concern basis
is still appropriate. However, the Directors believe that under the current economic environment
@ continuous assessment of the ability of the Company to continue to operate as a going concern
will need to be performed to determine the continued appropriateness of the going concern
assumption that has been applied in the preparation of these financial statements.

The inflation adjusted annual financial statements set out in this report have been prepared by
management in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which includes standards and
interpretations approved by the IASB and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC)
interpretations issued under previous constitutions.

The Company’s accounting and internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable
assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the financial statements and to adequately
safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of its assets. Such controls are based on
established written policies and procedures and all employees are required to maintain the
highest ethical standards in ensuring that the Company’s business practices are conducted in a
manner which in all reasonable eircumstances is above reproach. Issues that come to the
attention of the Directors have been addressed and the Directors confirm that the system of
accounting and internal control is operating in a satisfactory manner.



The Company’s inflation adjusted annual financial statements which are set out on pages
7 to 98 pages were, in accordance with their responsibilities, approved by the Board of Directors
on...]L...... April 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ndlowvu P.
Managing Director Chairman

These inflation adjusted annual financial statements were prepared under the supervision of:

Mukutirwa N.
Finance Director PAAB Number (4732)
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To the members of ABC Asset Management (Private) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Inflation Adjusted Annual Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the inflation adjusted annual financial statements of ABC Asset Management
(Private) Limited (the Company) set out on 7 to 98 pages, which comprise the inflation adjusted
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the inflation adjusted statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the inflation adjusted statement of changes in
equity and the inflation adjusted statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes
to the inflation adjusted financial statements, including material accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the inflation adjusted annual financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the inflation adjusted financial position of ABC Asset Management (Private] Limited as at
31 December 2024, and its inflation adjusted financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Valuation of property units

The opening investment property balances of the Company as at 1 January 2022, recognised in
the inflation adjusted annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
misstated. In performing the property valuations as at 31 December 2022, inappropriate void
rates were used. Though the void rates which are a significant input assumption when valuing
properties using the income approach were correctly factored into the valuations of the

Chartered Accountants
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properties, the void rates did not reflect the rental income from the current leases and other
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing investment property.

As a result, the opening financial assets at fair value through profit or loss balances as at 1
January 2023 recognised in the inflation adjusted statement of financial position, and the fair
value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
misstated. The opinion on the 2023 inflation adjusted annual financial statements was modified
in respect of this matter and the misstatements have not been corrected in the inflation adjusted
annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 in accordance with
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 8, ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors’. The effects on the inflation adjusted annual financial statements of this
misstatement have not been determined.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Inflation adjusted Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion.

Other information

Qur opinion on the inflation adjusted annual financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report on in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Inflation Adjusted
Annual Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the inflation adjusted
annual financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and in the manner required by the
Companies and Other Business Entities Act (Chapter 24:31), and the Securities Act (Chapter
24:25) and for such internal control as is necessary to enable the preparation of Inflation




adjusted financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the inflation adjusted annual financial statements, the Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Inflation Adjusted Annual Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the geing concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.



+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Company audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion,
the inflation adjusted annual financial statements have been properly prepared, in all material
respects in accordance with the requirements of the Companies and Other Business Entities Act
(Chapter 24:31) and the Securities Act (Chapter 24:25).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this Independent Auditor’s Report is Farai
Chibisa.

Gr-wl- -ﬂwrﬂ&

Farai Chibisa
Partner
Registered Public Auditor (PAAB No: 0647)

Grant Thornton " . (8 H i - S, 2025
Chartered Accountants [Zimbabwe)

Registered Public Auditors

HARARE
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Statement of financial position

as at 31 December 2024
Inflation adjusted Historical cost

2024 2023 2024 2023
ABSETS Notes IWG WG IWG IWG
Amounts due from group
companies 16.2 32537 &3 080 32637 3m
Cash and cash equivalents B 2 468 851 14 194 029 2 4458 861 849 916
Trade and other receivables 6 2 627 163 3043 8¥ 2627163 182 260
Gaold coins B 1272175 1763 037 1272175 105 568
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 7 212 367 178 303 B3B8 286 212 367178 18193 329
Current tax asset nz2 1423 979 - 1423 979 =
Property and equipment 10 153 008 B2 966 72186 450
Total ossets 220 344 891 322 9565 229 220 264 058 19 335 299
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 122 10 847 10 867 1 1
Share premium 123 1026 984 1026 984 83 83
Retained earnings 169 460130 234 724 766 170 590 11 14 113 939
Total equity 170 497 981 236 762 607 170 590195 14 114 023
LIABILMES
Amounts due to group
companies 16.3 9721486 4 961127 97214846 297 065
Trade and other payables 13 2402 013 2636 3w 2402 M3 167 800
Shareholder's loan 17 . 4 374 989 " 261767
Current tax llabilities n2 - 25781 . 148 384
Provisions 4 b4 479 852 34 630102 4479 862 2 067 604
Deferred tax liabilities 1.3 33 243 559 38 212 962 330705622 2 288 4Bé
Total liabilities 49 846 0 87192 422 49 673 873 5221276
Total equity and liobilities 220 344 B9 322 956 229 220 26% D68 19 335 299

Ndlovu P




ABC Aszet Management [Private] Limited

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2024

Fees and commission income

Fair wvalue adjustments on listed
equities

Fair value adjustments on unlisted
equities

Fair value odjustments on unguoted
property units

Fair value adjustments on geld coin
investments

Foreign exchange gains on financial

assets at amortised cost
Other foreign exchange gains/[losses)

Dividend income from financial ossets

at fair value through profit or loss
Rental income

Operating [loss)/ income

Other income

Operating expenses

Expected credit loss allowances on
trade and other receivables

Operating (loss)/profit

Finanece income

Finance costs
Gain on net menetary peosition

[Losa)/profit before income tax

Income tax expense

[Loes)/profit for the year

18

71

12

73

83

1

8
Inflation adjustad Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023
IWG IWG IWG IWG
16198 623 27216 913 9 380 610 933161
[42 441 354) 26 029 5o 23 859 073 3578 086
(366 136) [795 496) 277 249 22 034
(69 491 140) 123 683 506 145 423 936 12617 028
(490 B62) 982 339 1166 807 95 840
- 14 203 481 3 689 607
15 095 il (33 365 9uu) 16 686 127 (962 81)
2049 513 4 435 45 1426 929 165 337
326 30170 7516 1231
(79 426 T19] 162 319 479 198 227 047 17 039 843
1155 816 - 10563 2566 =
(25464 748) (63 B43 677) (13 625 867) (1939 109)
- {20 160) {1207)
[103 735 652) 98 7556 o642 186 664 436 15 099 627
71996 13 308 436 166 636 17 853
(75 000) (2 025 214) [14 022) (46 179)
36 061733 47 263 2646 - -
(68 576 923) 167 292 120 185 806 060 15 0712
3312297 (22 762 B42) (29 329 879) (2218 048]
(656 264 626) 134 539 578 166 476 172 12 853155




ABC Asset Monagement [Private) Limited 9
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)
Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 202% 2023

Notes IWG IWG WG IWG
Other comprehensive income for the
Yyear - - s %
Total comprehensive (loss)/ income
for the year (65 264 626) 134 539 678 156 W76 172 12 B53 165




ABC Asset Management [Privats) Limited 10

Statemant of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2024

Inflation adjusted
Share Share Retained

capital premium samings Total
Year ended 31 December 2023 IWG WG IWG WG
Balance as at 1 January 2023 10 847 1026 984 100 185 178 101 223 029
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 134 539 578 134 539 578
Profit for the year - = 134 539 578 134 639 578
Balance as at 31 December 2023 10 867 1026 984 234 724 756 235 762 607
Year ended 31 December 2024
Balance as at 1 January 2024 10 B&7 10246 984 234 724 756 235 762 607
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (65 264 626) (66 264 626)
Loss for the year 2 g (65 264 &25) (45 264 626)

Balance as at 31 December 2024 10 867 1026 984 169 460130 170 497 981




ABC Asszet Management [Privats) Limitad 1
Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)
Historical cost
Share Share Retained

capital premium sarnings Total
Year ended 31 December 2023 IWG IWG IWG IWG
Balance as at 1 January 2023 1 83 1260 784 1260 868
Total comprehensive income for the year - 12 863 165 12 863 155
Profit for the year - 12 853 155 12 863 166
Balance as at 31 December 2023 1 83 14 113 939 14 114 023
Year ended 31 December 2024
Baolance as at 1 January 2024 1 83 14 113 939 1% 114 023
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 156 476 172 166 U474 172
Profit for the year - - 166 476 172 166 476 172
Balance as at 31 December 2024 1 B3 170 590 111 170 590 195




ABC Asszet Management [Privata) Limited

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

[Loss)/profit before tax

Adjustment for:

Expected credit loss allowance on
trade and other receivables

Fair value adjustments on listed
equities

Fair volue adjustments on unlisted
aquities

Fair value adjustments on property
units

Fair value adjustments on gold coin
investments

Foreign exchange gains on finoncial
assets at amortised cost

Depreciation charge

Profit on disposal of property units
Finance income

Finance costs

Dividend income

Cash from/[utilised  in)
operating activities before working

inflows

capital changes

Working capital changes:

Decrease in amounts due from group
companies
Increase in trade and other
receivables

Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in provisions

Increase in amounts due to group

companies

Cash generated from operations

Notes

i

72

7.3

B33 e

12
Inflation adjusted Historical cost

2024 2023 2024 2023
IWG IWG IWG IWG

(68 676 923) 157 292120 185 806 0B0 156 071 20
- 201460 1207

L2 L4 36k (26 029 566) [23 859 073) (3 578 088)
356136 795 494 (277 2u9) [22 034)
69491140  (123583605) (45423936) (12517 028)
490 B&2 (982 339) (1166 607) (95 840)

- (14 203 481) - (689 407)

24 578 34 822 5089 59
(1156 815) . {1063 256) .
(171 99&) (13 308 438) (165 636] (17 853)
76 000 2025 214 14 022 L& 179

(2 049 513) (4 436 945) (1426 929) (165 337)
L0 924 823 [22 375 4&0) 12 453 474 (1967 139)
30543 [&1700) (28 760) [3780)
W47 221 (844 067) (2473 663) (149 057)
(233 328) 1623 008 2244 213 57 696
(30 080 250) aruon 2412 248 1890 w18
L 760 369 858 685 9424 421 276 932
56 804 191 [6 060 083) 24031933 106 090




ABC Asset Management [Private) Limited 13
Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 202% [continued)
Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2024 2023

Notes IWG IWG IWG IWG
Dividends recelved 2049 513 k 435 945 1425 929 165 337
Interest received 211 171996 13 308 436 166 636 17 863
Interest paid 2241 (75 000) [&1301) (14 022) (1399)
Net cash from operating activities 58950700 11632 997 26 599 476 286 881
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of listed equities 74 (22 145 730) (2710 568) (8 354 753) (101 884)
Proceeds from sale of listed equities 7.1 19 912 907 3 546 069 7512 406 97z
Purchase of property units 73 (10 508 767) (& 549 094) (15 6956 312) (205 947)
Proceeds on maturity of financial
assets at amortised cost - 20 270 994 . 797 &M
Acquisition of equipment 10 12% 630 - 76 824 -
Net cash (utilised in)/generated from
e actibis (12616960) 14667401 (16 460 838) 686 892
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings 1% - (306 938) 2 [ 7008)
Proceeds from sharehelders' loan 7 (378 635) - (225 182) -
Repayment of shareholders’ loan 7 101 01y - 50 807 =
Net cash utilised financing activities (277 621) (306 936) (174 3785) (7 008)
Net [decrease) / increase in cash
and cash equivalents L& 066119 26 883 4&2 B 964 266 8566766
Effects of foreign  exchonge
movements on cash (7 345 330) (63 272) (7 345 330) (31636)
Inflation effect on cash (50 435 967) (12 293 865) - .
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 14 194 029 667 704 849 915 14786
Cash and cash equivalents ot the
end of the year b 2448 851 14 194 029 2 468 851 BU9 915




ABC Asset Management [Privata) Limitad U

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024

21

General information

ABC Asset Manogement (Private] Limited [the "Company®), incorporated and domiciled in Zimbabwe is
registered as an investment manager by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Zimbabwe under the
Zimbabwe Securities Act [Chapter 24:26). The Company provides fund manogement services in Zimbabwe.
The Company aims to create a financial institution that provides leadership, liquidity, access to investors,
product innovation and techneology to support economic growth and strengthen financial systems. The
Company is o subsidiary of ABC Holdings [Zimbabwe] Limited which is owned by ABC Heldings Limited
[incorporated and domiciled in Botswana] which is in turn owned by Atlas Mara Limited.

Material occounting policies

This note provides the principal accounting pelicies applied in the preparation of these financial statements
to the extent that they have not already been disclosed in other notes. These policies have been consistently
opplied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Baasis of preparation

The financial statements of the ABC Asset Monagement [Private] Limited have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Stondards ("IFRS"), and interpretations issued by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Coemmittee (IFRS IC") applicable to companies reporting under IFRS and
in the manner required by the Zimbobwe Companies and Other Business Entities Act [Chapter 24:31] except
for non-complionce with respect to the application of 1AS 21 and IAS 8 and their consequential effects on the
hyperinflationary odjustments made in terms of IAS 29, as well as the impact of conversion rates used to
convert US$ valuation inputs to determine the ZWG fair value of property units in the prior year and current
year and the accounting for the custodial services bank account among others.

For purposes of fair presentation in accordance with 1AS 29, the historical cost information has been restated
for changes in the general purchasing power of the Zimbabwe dollar ["ZWG"). Accordingly, the inflation
adjusted financial statements represent the primary financial statements of the Company. The historical cost
financial information has been provided only as supplementary infermation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain eritical accounting
estimates. It olso requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies. The areas involving o higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where

assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclesed in note 3.
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Notes to the financial statemants
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

21

211

Material accounting policies [continued)
Basis of preparation [continued)

Inflation adjustment

On 11 Qctober 2019, the Public Accountants and Auditors Board (the "PAAB") issued pronouncement 01/2019,
which odvised thot Zimbabwe had met conditions for application of IAS 29 for financial periods ended or
after 1 July 2019,

IAS 29 requires that financial statements whose functional currency is the currency of a huperinflationary
economy be stated in terms of ameasuring unit current at the statement of financial position date, and that
corresponding figures for previous periods be restated in the same terms.The restatement caters for the
changes in the general purchasing power of the Zimbabwe Dollar and is calculated by means of conversion
factarsderived from the month- on-month consumer price index ("CPI") prepared by the Zimbabwe National
Statistics Agency. The conversion factors used to restate the financial statements as ot 31 December 2023 are
as follows:

2024 2024 2023 2023

Caonsumer Conversion Consumer Conversion

Date prica index factor price index factor
Dacember &6 703 1.00 13 673 k.81
November 63 916 1.22 13 349 L.92
Cctober Le 223 1.33 1314 6501
September 4y 721 1.47 12 T3 b7
August L2 660 1.64 12 286 535
July L& 534 14 10 933 &0
June 42 1 1.54 8707 7.65
May 18 706 a.51 & &62 .86
April 15 L8O L2y 5 507 .93
March 13960 wh L 766 13.79
February 13 B49 Ly, Tl b 483 .58
January 13 820 4.756 4190 16.68

The main considerations and procedures applied for the above-mentioned restatement of transoctions and
balances are as follows:

» corresponding figures for the previous period are restated in terms of the measuring unit current at the
statement of financial position date by applying the change in the index;

* monetary assets and liabilities that are carried at amounts current at the statement of financial pesition
date are not restated since they are already stated in terms of the measuring unit current at the statement of
financial pesitien date;
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| Notes to the financial stataments

21

l 211

for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

Meaterial accounting policies [continued)
Basis of preparation [continued)
Inflation adjustment {mnﬁnund]

* generally non-monetary assets and liabilities that are not carried at amounts current at reporting date are
restated by applying the change in the index from the date of the transaction as detailed below:

* equipment and accumulated depreciation

- the eriginal purchase cost of equipment is restated from the date of the purchase of each item, or if
acquired befere 31 December 2018, using the conversion rate from 31 December 2018 to the statement of
financial position using the applicable general price index. The depreciation charge for the current period is
calculated on the basis of the restated equipment. Opening accumulated depreciation is alse calculated on
the basis of the restated equipment;

- additions to equipment are restated using the relevant conversion factors from the date of the transaction
to the reporting date, or if acquired before 31 December 2018, using the conversion rate from 31 December
2ms:

- for disposals, the original date of purchase and the historical cost is determined and the restated balance is
deducted from the equipment balance.

* non-monetary assets carried at fair value are not restated as they are carried at amounts current at the end
of the period;

* components of shareholders equity are restated by applying the general price level from the beginning of
the peried or date of contribution, if later;

* statement of comprehensive income items are restated to the measuring unit current at the reporting dote
by applying o general price index fram the date of the underlying transaction or events. The restatement of
the comprehensive statement items is done on o monthly basis with the exception of items such as
depreciation which are calculated separately. Depreciation is calculated based on the restated carrying
amount of the vehicles and equipment.

* the effect of inflation on the net monetary pesition of the Company is included in profit or loss as o gain or
loss on the net monetary position; and

* items in the statement of cash flows are expressed in terms of the measuring unit current at the reporting
date,

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates, [the "functional currency"). The financial statements are
presented in the ZWG which is both the functional and presentation currency of the Company.
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Notas to the financial statements
for the ysar anded 31 Dacember 2024 [continued)

21

21.2

Material accounting policies [continued)
Basis of preparation [continued)

Foreign currency translation

Currency developments in Zimbabwe

Zimbabwe has witnessed significant monetary and exchange control policy changes from 2016 through to
2023. These changes in prier years, resulted in the promulgation of Statutory Instrument (*5.1.") 33 of 2019
Presidential Powers (Temporary Measures] Amendment of the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe Act and Issue of
Real Time Gross Settlement Electronic Dollars) [RTGS Deollars)) Regulation, 2019 ["SI 33 of 2019") on 22
February 2019 which introduced the Real Time Gross Settlement ["RTGS"] dollar. An Exchange Control
Directive RU 28 of 2019 was also issued on the same day which introduced an interbank exchange rate for the
RTGS dollar to the USS as well as other currencies that existed in the multicurrency regime.

In addition, 5., 33 of 2019 prescribed, among other directives, that for accounting and other purposes, all
lecal ossets and local liabilities in Zimbabwe that were immediately before the effective dote of the statutory
instrument valued in United States of America dollars [other than ossets and liabilities referred to in section
Ll C [2) of the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe Act [Chapter 22:15) would on and ofter the effective date be
deemed to be values in RTGS dollars ot a rate of 1:1 to the U35, As at 31 Dacember 2018, the RTGS dollar had
not been promulgated as prescribed under S.1. 33 of 2019.

On 24 June 2019, Statutory Instrument 142 of 2019 Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe (Legal Tender) Regulation 2019
["S.). 142 of 2019"] abolished the multicurrency regime and introduced the ZWG as the sole legal tender in
Zimbaobwe.

As a result of the currency changes announced by the Government, the directors assessed, in accordance
with IAS 21 and the guidance issued by the Public Accountants and Auditors Board ["PAAB"], whether the
functional ond presentation currency remained appropriate. In this regord, the following ospects were
considered as articulated in 1A3 21

- The currency of the country whose econemy determines sale prices of goods and services;

- The currency that influences the price for the Company’s products;

- The currency that influences labour, material and other costs of running the Company's cperations;

- The currency in which oparating receipts are retained.

In the view of the directors, the ZWG is the key driver of the factors noted above for the purpose of preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, The ZWG was determined as the Company’s
functional ond presentation currency for the purpose of accounting and reporting with effect from 22
February 2019,
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Material accounting policies [continued)

Basis of preparation [continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
[a) Functional and presentation currency (continued)
Currency developments in Zimbabwe [continued)

Transactions between 1 January 2019 and 22 February 2019 were translated ot a rate of USS1:: ZWGH in
accordance with 5.1, 33 of 2019 and subsequently all foreign denominated transactions were translated using
the interbank foreign exchange rate.

The interbank market for the ZWG and the USS that was introduced by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe on 22
February 2019 through Exchange Control Directive RU 28 of 2019 remained in force up to 26 March 2020.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe fixed the interbank foreign exchange
rate at 1USS : 26 ZWG for the peried from 27 March 2020 to 23 June 2020,

For the period frem 1 January 2020 to 22 June 2020, the Company translated foreign denominated
transactions and balances using the interbank foreign exchange rotes to comply with the various changes in
monetary pelicy in Zimbabwe, which were not considered an appropriate spot rate for translation of foreign
denominated transoctions and balances as required by IAS 21. The determination of an exchange raote is
considered a significant judgement due te its nature and the number of alternative exchange rates that could
have been applied.

With effect from 23 June 2020, the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe established the Foreign Exchange Auction
Trading System. Bidding on the foreign exchange ouction system is conducted under specified terms and
conditions. At the end of each auction, the highest bid rate accepted, the lowest bid rate accepted and the
weighted average auction rate are published together with other relevant information. The auction system is
widely available and therefore, the IAS 21 spot rate definition is considered to have been met as at 31
December 2023 and for the year then ended in relation to foreign deneminated financial statement line items

[b) Transactions and balances

& foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initiol recognition, by opplying to the foreign currency amount,
the spot exchange rote between the functional currency and the foreign currency ot the dote of the
transaction.
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Matsrial accounting policies [continued)
Basis of preparation [continued)

Foreign currency translation [continued)
[b) Transactions and balances

At the end of the reperting period:

- foreign currency denominated monetary items are transloted using the closing foreign exchange rate;

- nen-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and

- non-monetary items that are meosured at foir value in o foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rate at the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary items or from translating monetary items at
rates different from those ot which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous
financial statements are recognised in profit or loss in the peried in which they arise. Foreign exchange gains
and losses that relate to borrowings are presented in profit or loss, within finonce costs.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

New or revised Standards or Interpretations
New Standards adopted as ot 1 January 2024%

Several IFRS amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2024, but do not have an impact on
the financial stotements of the Company. The Company has not eorly odopted any other standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been issued.
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21.3 New or revised Standards or Interpretations

New Standards adopted as at 1 January 2024

20

Several IFRS amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2024, but do not have an impact on
the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any other standard,

interpretation or amendment that has been issued.

(a) New Standards adopted as at 1 January 2024

IFRS 51 General Requirements
for Disclosure of Sustainability-
related Financial Information

Effective
1 January 2024

| Exacutive summary

IFRS S1 sets out overall requirements for
sustoinability-reloted financial disclosures with the
objective to require an entity to disclose infermation
about its  sustoinability-reloted risks and
opportunities that is useful to primary users of
general purpose financial reports in  making
decisions relating to providing resources to the entity.

Disclosures

IFRS 52 Climate-related

1January 2024

IFRS 52 sets out the requirements for identifying,
measuring and disclosing information about climate-
related risks and opportunities that is useful to
primary users of general purpose financial reports in
making decisions relating providing

resources to the entity.

[Amendments to 145 1)

Classification of liabilities as
Current or Men-current

1January 2024

The omendments aim to promote consistency in
applying the requirements by helping companies
determine whether, in the statement of financial
position,debt and other ligbilities with an uncertain
settlement date should be classified as current [due
or potentially due to be settled within one
year] or non-current.

Leaseback
Amendments to IFRS 18]

Lease liability in o Sale and

1 January 2024

The oamendment clorifies how o seller-lessee
subsequently measures sale and leaseback
transactions that satisfy the requirements in IFRS 16
to be accounted for as a sale.
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21.3 New or revised Standords or Interpretations [continued)

(a) New Standards adopted as at 1 January 2024 (continued)

N ber Effective date ‘Baoathe

Supplier Finance Arrangements|1 January 2024 The amendment clarifies how conditions with which
(Amendments to A5 an entity must comply within twelve months after the
Tand IFRS 7) reporting period affect the classification of a liability.

Supplier Finance Arrangements|1 Jonuary 2024
[Amendments to 145
7 and IFRS 7)

The amendments add disclosure requirements, and
‘signpeosts’ within existing disclosure requirements,
that ask entities to provide gqualitotive and
quantitative information about supplier

finance arrangements.

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing Standards that are not yet effective and have

not been adopted early by the Company

[Number |Effoctivedate |

- Exscutive summary

IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 regarding the|1 January 2026
classification and
measurement of
financial instrumeants

The amendments address matters identified during
the post-implementation review of the classification

and measurement requirements of IFRS 9.

Lack of Exchangeakility|1 January 2025
[Amendments to 145 21)

The amendments contain guidance to specify when a
currency is exchangeable and how to determine the
exchange rate when it is not.

IFRS 1B Presentation and|lJanuary 2027
Disclosures inj
Financial Statements

IFRS 18 includes requirements for all entities applying
IFRS for the presentation ond disclosure of
information, in financial statements.

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without|l Jonuary 2027
Public
Accountability: Disclosures

IFRS 19 specifies the disclosure requirements an
eligible subsidiary is permitted to opply instead of
the disclosure requirements in  other IFR3
Accounting Standards.
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Material accounting policies [continued)
Basis of preparation [continued)
New or reviesd Standards or Interpretations [continued]

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing Standards that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted early by the Company [continued)

[Number Effectivedatse | Executive summary

Amendments to IAS 21Llock of{l January 2026 An entity is impacted by the amendments when it
Exchangeability [Amendments has a transaction or an operation in a foreign
to IAS 21) currency that is not exchangeable into another

currency at a measurement date for a specified
purpose. A currency is exchangeable when there is
an ability to obtain the other currency (with anormal
administrative delay], aond the transoction would
take place through o market or exchange mechanism

that creates enforceable rights and obligations.

There are ne other standards, omendments and interpretations that are not yet effective that are likely to
have a material impact on the Company.

Financial assets
[i] Classification

The Company clossifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

+ those to be measured subsequently ot fair value [either through other comprehensive income ("OCI) or
through profit or loss), and

+ thosze to be measured at amertised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.,

For ossets measured ot fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or less or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to cccount for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income ["FYOCIT).

The Company reclassifies debt securities investments when and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.
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22  Financial assets [continued)

(i) Classification (continued)

Business model assessment

In making on assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial osset iz held, the
Company considers all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

» the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes whether the
investment strategy focuses on earning controctual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of the finoncial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected
cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

* how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

* the risks that offect the performance of the business model [and the financial ossets held within thot
business model) and how those risks are monaged;

* how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

+ the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasens for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for de-recognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets. The
Company has determined that it has two business models:

* Held-to-collect business model: These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flows.

+ Other business model: These financial assets are managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair

value basis, with frequent sales taking place.
Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs [e.q. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest ["SPPI"), the
Company considers the controctual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains o contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such
that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:
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22  Financial assets [continued)
(1) Classification [continued)

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (continued)

» contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

* leverage features; « prepayment and extension features;

* terms that limit the Company's claim to eash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features); and
+ features that medify consideration of the time value of money [e.g. pericdical reset of interest rates).

(i) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which
the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures o financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of o financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss ["FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FYPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the osset. There are two measurement categories into which the
Company classifies its debt instruments:

= Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured ot amortised cost, Interest income from
these financial ossets is included in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss ond presented in other gains/[losses) together
with foreian exchanae gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented s a separate line item in profit or

« Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on o debt investment that is subsequently measured ot FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.



ABC Asset Management [Privata) Limited 26

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

2 Material accounting policies [continued)
22  Financial assets [continued)

(iii) Measurement [continued)

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management
has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss when the Company's right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in profit or loss as applicable.
(iv]) Impairment

The Company assesses on a forward locking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodelogy applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

Refer to note Y.1 for further details on impairment and risk exposure.

The Company measures allowance for expected credit losses at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses, except for the following which are measured ot 12-month expected credit losses:

- financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting dote; and

= other financial assets for which credit risk [i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the
asset) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of o finoncial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.

This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical
experience and informed credit assessment including forward-looking information. The Company assumes
that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

« the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company ; or

» the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.
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Material accounting policies [continued)
Financial asssts (continued)
(iv) Impairment [continued)

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the 12 months ofter the reporting daote [or a sherter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum peried considered when estimating expected credit losses is
the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cosh shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Expected credit losses are discounted using the effective interest rate of the financial osset.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as o debtor failing
to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where receivables have been written off, the Company
continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are
made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

Offeetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial pesition
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and not in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counter-party.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. They are generally due for settlement within 30 days and are therefore all clossified as
current. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, unless
they contain significant financing components, when they ore recognised ot fair value. The Company holds
the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less allowance for expected credit
losses. Details about the Company's impairment policies and the caleulation of the loss allowance are
provided in note 4.1(a).
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Material accounting policies [continued)
Trade and other receivables [continued)

Other receivables generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the Company.
Interest may be charged at commercial rates where the terms of repayment exceed six months. Collateral is
not nermally obtained.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, depasits held at call with financial institutions, ather short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of aequisition that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash ond which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
their fair value.

Property units

Property units ore o form of a collective investment, pooling investors' money into @ property which is
managed by o fund manager, and allocating units to different porticipants, derived based on an
independent professional valuations of an underlying property. The property units are held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both. Property units are stated at fair value at the reporting date.
Fair value is based on open market value of the underlying property and any gain or loss arising is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gold coina

The Company holds gold ceins which are classified os financial assets at fair value threugh profit or loss as
they fail the SPPI test, which is a prerequisite for finoncial instruments to be classified ot amortised cost or
FVOCI.

Geld coins are initially measured at cost and subsequently ot fair value, with any change thersin recognised
in profit or loss. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of gold coins are included in profit or
less in the year in which they arise. The fair value is determined according to the global gold market price per
ounce at the reporting date.

The gold coins have the following qualities;

i. Liquid asset status

il. Prescribed asset status

iii. Collateral acceptability

iv. Tradable

v. Serial numbering

vi. Central bank buy-back when required by the holder of the gold coin.
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Material accounting pelicies [continued)

Property and equipment

Equipment comprises computer hardware, furniture ond fittings, office equipment and leasehold
improvements.

Equipment is stated at histerical cost less accumuloted depreciation and impairment losses in the stotutory
records. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly ottributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are either included in the asset's carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company ond the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenonce costs
are charged to profit or loss in the financial peried in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is colculated on o straight line basis so as to allocate the cost of the assets less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Office equipment 10 years
Furniture and fittings 6-10 years
Computer equipment 3 -6 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years

The assets’ residual values, depreciotion methods and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each reporting date.

The carrying amounts are reviewed ot each reporting date to assess whether there is any indication of
impairment and an assets carrying ameounts is written down to its recoverable ameount if the asset’s carrying
amount is grecter than its estimated recoverable amount.

An asset is derecognised upon dispesal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any
gain or loss on de-recognition of the osset [calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying value of the asset] is included in profit or loss in the period the asset is derecognised.
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Material accounting policies [continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to omortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets ["cash-generating units"). Non-financial
assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

Currant income and deferred tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable or tax recoverable on the current year's
taxable income, based on the applicable income tax rate assessable in Zimbabwe, adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tox losses.

Current income tax and deferred tax is included in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, In this case, the tax is alse included in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted in
Zimbabwe at the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates the position taken in tox returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it
is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides
a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred tax is recognised in full using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bozes of assets and liabilities and their carrying ameunts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, or an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.
Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date and are expected to apply when the reloted deferred tax osset Is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
avaoilable against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Material accounting policies [continued)
Current income and deferred tax [continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
ossets against current tax liabilities and where the deferred tax bolances relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.
Current income tax assets and income tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from the
proceeds, net of tax.

Dividends

Dividend distributions to the Company's shareholders are recognised as a liability and o deduction in equity
in the period in which the dividends are declored by the Company's directors.

A liability is recognised for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised by the
directors of the Company and no longer ot the discretion of the Company, on or before the end of the
reporting pericd but not distributed at the end of the reperting period.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially ot their foir value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Cempany has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying econemic benefits will be required to
settle the cbligation and o reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.
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214

Material accounting policies [continued)
Provisions

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations is minimal.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present value at the end of the reporting period. The discount rote used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to possage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at foir value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between proceeds [net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest rate method.

Fees paid on the establishment of borrowings are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the focility will be drawn down. In this cose, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent that there is no evidence thot it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of
the facility to which it relates,

Borrowings are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is dischaorged, cancelled or has
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that hos been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including ony non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Where the terms of o financial liability are renegotiated and the Company issues equity instruments to o
creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), o gain or loss is recognised in prafit or
loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair
value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlernent of the liobilities for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.




ABC Asset Manogement [Privata) Limited 3z

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

216

2.16

Material accounting policies [continued)

Revenue recognition

The Company applies IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers, to all revenue arising from contracts
with clients, unless the contracts are in the scope of the standards on leases, insurance contracts and
financial instruments. The Company recognises revenues to depict the transfer of promised service to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
the service, basing on the following five-step model whereby the Company:
. Identifies the contract(s] with a customer
ldentifies the performance obligations in the contract
Determines the transaction price
Allocates the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
] Recognises revenue when (or as) the entity sotisfies o performance obligation.

Revenue is measured ot the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for services rendered in the course of business. Revenue is derived substantially from the business
of asset management and related activities and comprises fee and commission income.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided and
receipt of the fee is probable.

Other incoma
[a) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when a contractual right exists to receive the dividend. This eccurs when
dividends have been declared by the directors of the investee company.

(b) Finance income

Finance income is included in profit or loss on all interest bearing financial instruments on an accruals basis
using the effective interest rate method.
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Material accounting policies [continued)
Other income [continued)

(b) Finance income [continued)

The effective interest rate method is @ method of caleulating the amertised cost of o financial asset or a
financiol liobility and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exoctly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When caleulating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options). The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. Once
a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment
loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cashflows for the
purposes of measuring the impairment loss,

Managed funds and trust activities

The Company acts as a trustee and in other fiduciary copaocities that result in the holding or placement of
assets on behalf of individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and other Institutions and receives a
management fee for providing these services. The assets and income generated by these assets. are excluded
from these financial statements becouse they are not owned by the Company. The manoged funds are
recarded off statement of financial pesition in accordance with paragroph 21 of the First Schedule, of the
Zimbabwe Securities and Exchange Act (Chapter 24:25) and are disclosed in note 24,

Unclaimed shares

As part of the process of automation of listed shares on the Zimbabwe Stock Exchange ["ZSE"), recenciliations
were done by transfer secrataries in 2014 to determine ownership of the shares. All administrative weaknesses
of the manual system were corrected since the introduction of the Automated Trading System (["ATS") in 2014,
There were shares that were identified by the transfer secretary os belonging to ABC Asset Management
during the reconciliation process. These shares were transferred to the Excess Shares Account as 'unclaimed
shares' and subsequently transferred from the Excess Shores Account to the proprietary account of the
Company after the lapse of five years in accordance with the Securities Exchange Commission of Zimbabwe
guidelines.
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Matarial accounting policies [continued)
Employee benefits
(o] Short-term benefits

These benefits include solaries ond reloted payments, leave pay, medical scheme poyments and other
employes payments related to employment conditions. The Company provides other benefits which include
education facilities, low interest loans for vehicles and housing plans and other plans approved by the Board.

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided.

A ligbility is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation con be estimated reliably.

The Company's obligation in respect of accumuloted leave doys is recognised in full in the financial
statemeants on an undiscounted basis ond is expensed as the reloted services are provided.

(b] Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Company recognises a liobility and on expense for profit-sharing, based on a formula which takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Compaony's shareholders after certain adjustments. The Company
recognises a liability where there is a past practice that has created a constructive abligation.

() Pension obligations

The Company operates a defined contribution plan for all permanent employees. A defined contribution plan
is a pension plan under which the Company poys fixed contributions into a separate entity thot is privotely
administered. The Company has no legal er constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to poy all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods. The pension plan is funded by payments from employees and the Company and by taking
into account the recommendations of independent actuaries. Contributions to this fund are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred. The Company has no further obligations ence the contributions have been paid.

(d] National Secial Security Authority Fund

The Company and its employees contribute to the National Sceial Security Authority Scheme. This is a social
security scheme which was promulgated under the Mational Social Security Act [Chapter 17:04). The
Company's obligations under the scheme are limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time.
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Material accounting policies [continued)
Employee benefits [continued)

(d) Mational Social Security Authority Fund [continued)

The Company's contributions to the pension plans are included in profit or loss in the period to which the
contributions relate.

Gaing concern

The directors have assessed the ability of the Company to continue operating as a geing concern and believe
that the preparation of these financial statements on a going concern basis is still appropriate. However, the
directors believe that under the current economic environment a continuous assessment of the ability of the
Company to continue to operate as a going concern will need to be performed to determine the continued
appropriateness of the going concern assumption that has been applied in the preparation of these financial
statements.

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation [“WHO") declared the Coronavirus COVID-19 outbreak to
be o pandemic due to its rapid spread across the globe. Many Governments including the Zimbabwean
Government took stringent measures to help contain the virus, including: mandatory lockdown, requiring self-
isolation/quarantine by those potentially affected. implementing social distancing measures and controlling
or closing borders. Since March 2020, the Government of Zimbobwe introduced varying degrees of country-
wide lockdowns affecting economic activity. The Company has been oble to continue operating due to its
designation an essential service.

While most countries have been affected to different degrees by the pandemic, COVID-19 has led to a
relotively weaker economic outlook and uncertainties across the globe. This includes disruptions to supply
chains and domestic preduction.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the reloted actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing o material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liobilities within the
next financial year are oddressed below:
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements [continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions [continued)
(o) Measurement of fair value

The Company measures a number of its financial assets at fair value, being the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal [or most advantageous)
market between market participants at the measurement date. The Company may rely on independent
opinions of experts in the related fields. Fair value is o market based measurement and uses the assumptions
that market porticiponts would use when pricing an asset or liability under current morket conditions. When
determining fair value it is presumed that the Company is a going concern and is not an omount thot
represents a forced transaction, involuntary liquidation or a distressed sale. The existence of quoted prices in
an active market represents the best evidence of fair value. Where such prices exist, they are used in
determining the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Where quoted market prices are unavailable, the Company establishes fair value using valuation techniques
that incorporate observable inputs, either directly, such as quoted prices, or indirectly, such as those derived
from quoted prices, for such assets and liabilities. Where such inputs are not available, the Company makes
use of theoretical inputs in establishing fair value [unobservable inputs). Such inputs are bosed on other
relevant input sources of information and incorporate assumptions that include prices for similar
transactions, historical dato, economic fundomentals, and research information, with oppropriote
adjustments to reflect the terms of the actual instrument being valued and current market conditions.
Changes in these assumptions would affect the reported fair values of these financial instruments. Valuation
techniques used for financial instruments include the use of financial models that are populated using market
parameters that are corroborated by reference to independent market data, where possible, or alternative
sources, such as, third-party quotes, recent transaction prices or suitable proxies. The fair value of certain
financiol instruments is determined using industry stondard medels such as, discounted cash flow analysis.
These medels are generally used to estimate future cash flows and discount these back to the voluation date.
For complex or unique instruments, more sophisticated modelling techniques may be required, which require
assumptions ar more complex parameters,

The Company holds investments in property units, unquoted equities and quoted equities, note 7. The fair
value of property units is derived from an allocation of the valuation of the underlying properties as
determined by independent professional valuers at the reporting date, based on each property unit owner's
shareholding. The fair value of unquoted equities is determined ot each reporting date by on independent

valuation by a professional firm.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on market conditions and information about
the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and invelve uncertainties and matters of
judgement [i.e. interest rates, volotility and estimated cash flows)] and therefore cannot be determined with

precision.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements [continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions [continued)

(o) Measurement of fair value [continued)

The users of the financial statements must therefore note that whilst management has taken the necessary
steps in coming up with the fair valuation, significant judgements were applied in the current year as a result
of the uncertainties resulting from the volatile economic envirenment and currency shifts.

(b) Income taxes

Determining the Company’s tax charge for the year invelves estimation and judgement, which includes
interpretation of local tax lows and an assessment of whether the tax authorities will occept the position
taken. These judgements take account of external advice where appropriate, and the Company'’s view on
sattling with the tax authorities.

The Coempany is subject to income taxes under the Zimbabwean tax jurisdiction. Significant estimates are
required in determining the liability for income taxes. There are many transactions and caleulations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Company recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tox outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tox liabilities in the period in which such determination is
made.
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Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Company’s business involves taking on risks in a targeted manner and managing them professionally.
Taking risk is core to the financial services business, and the eperational risks are an inevitable consequence
of being in business. The Compony's aim is to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and
minimise potential adverse effects on the Compony's financial performance. The Company's risk
management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and
contrels, and to monitor the risks ond adherence to limits by means of relioble and up-to-date information
systems. The Company regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in
markets, products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out by the ABC Holdings (Zimbabwe) limited Group Risk Committee, under
policies approved by the Boord of Directors [the "Board”]. The Board approves principles for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. In
addition, group internal audit is responsible for the independent review of risk management processes and the

control environment.

The most significant types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. Market risk includes foreign
exchange risk, fair value and cash flow interest rate risk and price risk.

() Credit risk

The Company takes on exposure to cradit risk, which is the risk thot a counterparty will couse a financial loss
to the Company by feiling to discharge an obligation. Significant changes in the economy, or in the financial
health of a particular industry segment that represents a concentration in the Company's pertfolio, could
result in losses that are different from those provided for at the statement of financial position date. Country
[or sovereign] risk is part of overall credit risk and is managed as part of the credit risk management function
as it has a major impact on individual counterparties’ ability to perform. Monagement therefore carefully
manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit exposures arise principally from balances with banks and financial
institutions and trade and other receivables. ABC Holdings [Zimbabwe) Limited Group Risk Department ["Risk
Department"] reviews the Company's risk exposures regulorly and reports to the Board.

The Board has defined ond documented a credit policy for the Company which forms the basis of credit
decizions. This policy includes a framework of limits and delegation of eredit approval autheority which are
strictly adhered to. No single individual has the power to autherise credit exposures.

The Group Risk Department regularly reviews adherence to required stondards. The ABC Holdings [Zimbabwe]
Limited Group Risk Committee reports to the Board and is responsible for approval of credit decisions that are
above trading limits. recommendations on exposure limits and provisioning pelicies.
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[} Financial risk management (continued)

41  Financlal risk factors [continued)
[a) Credit risk [continued)

Risk limit contrel and mitigation policies

a9

The Company manages, limits and controls concentrations of credit risk in respect of individual
counterparties and groups. The Company structures the levels of credit risk it undertokes by placing limits on
the amount of risk accepted in relation to one counterparty, or groups of counterparties. Such risks are on a
revolving basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the
level of credit risk are approved by the Board of Directors and reviewed regularly.

Exposure to credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of the ability of debters to settle amounts due

to the Company for osset manogement services provided.

The following table presents the maximum exposure to credit risk of recognised statement of financial position

and unrecognised off - statement of financial position financial instruments.

Credit risk exposures relaoting to unrecognised
financial assets are as follows:

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024
WG IWG IWNG IWG
Cash and cash equivalents 50 674197 139107 788 50 674 197 B 329 642
Money market investmants 80 078 40 19790 80 078 410 1185
Total funde under management 130 752 687 139 127 578 130 752 687 8 330 727
Total moximum exposure derived from each
unrecognised financial asset is as follows:
Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents 39% 34% 39% 4%
Money market investments &1% 66% 61% &6%
1007 100%, 100%, 100%,
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4 Financial risk management [continued)

%1  Financial risk factors [continued)
(@) Credit risk [continued)

As at 31 December credit risk exposures relating
to recognized financial assets are as follows:

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 202% 2023
IWG IWG IWG IWG
Cash and cash equivalents 2 468 BB1 14 19% D29 2 448 861 847 915
Amounts due from group
companies 32 637 63 080 32 537 37
Trade and other receivables
[excluding prepoyments and
statutory receivables) 2 047 607 3 043 BW1 2 047 407 182 260
548006 17300950 4548995 _1035962

For recognised assets, the exposures set out above are based on net carrying amounts as reported in the

statemant of financial position.

Total maoximum exposure derived from each

recoanised financial asset is as follows:

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024% 202% 2023
IWG WG IWG WG
Cash and cash equivalents 54% 82% 543 82%
Trade and other receivables 45% 18% 45% 18%
100% 100%: 100% 100%

Management is confident in their ability to continue to control and sustain minimal exposure of credit risk to
the Company through continuous improvement in credit selection and monitoring processes.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

k.1

Financlal risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Company has four types of financial assets that are subject to the expected credit loss medal:
* trade and other receivables;

» debt securities at amortised cost;

+ debt securities; and

« other financiol azsets ot omortized cost

While cash and cosh equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade and other receivables

The Company opplies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring lifetime allowance from expected credit
losses on all trade receivables.

The expected loss rotes are based on the payment profiles of debtars over a period of 12 months before 31
December 2023 and the corresponding historical eredit losses experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking infermation on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the debtors to settle the receivables. Macroeconomic conditions prevailing in the
economy such as inflation, interest rates and other relevant factors accordingly adjust the historical loss
rates based on expected changes in these factors,

The Company establishes an allowance for expected credit losses that represents its estimate of expected
credit losses in respect of other receivables. The Company does not consider there to be any significant
concentration of credit risk in respect of which adequate impoirment has not been raised.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair value as ot 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2021 because of the short term nature of the finoncial instruments.

Debt securities at amortised cost

Al of the Company's debt investments at amortised cost are considered to have low credit risk, and the loss
allowance recognised during the period was therefore limited to 12 months’ expected losses. Management
consider ‘low credit risk’ risk where instruments have a low risk of default and the issuer hos a strong

capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.
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MNotes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

i Financial risk management [continued)

1  Financial risk factors (continued)
() Credit risk (continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets [continued)
Other financiol ossets at amortized cost

Other financial ossets ot omortised cost include amounts due from group companies and other receivables.
All of the Company's other financial assets at amortised cost are considered to have low credit risk.

Analysis of allowance for expected credit losses

On that basis, the allowance for expected credit losses as ot 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 were
determined as follows:
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

4.1

Financial risk management [continued)

Financial risk factors [continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may fail to meet its payment obligations when they fall due.
Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the ovailability
of funding through on adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. The Company identifies this risk through periodic liquidity gap onalysis and the maturing profile of
assets and liabilities. Where major gaps appear, action is taken in advance to close or minimise the gaps.

The liquidity of the Company is managed by Finance. Surplus cash held by the Company over and above the
balance required for working copitol monagement is invested in interest bearing instruments with
appropriate maturities taking into consideration the Company's operational needs.

The table below onalyses the Company's financial assets and financial liobilities into relevant maturity
groups bosed on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within twelve months equal
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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ABC Aszset Management [Privats) Limited BY4

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

1

Financial risk management [continued)

Financial risk factors [continued)
(c) Markst risk

The Company takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate becouse of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions
in foreign currencies, equities and interest bearing assets and liabilities to the extent that these are exposed
to general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such
as interest rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

Market risk measurement techniques
The major measurement techniques used to measure and contral market risk are outlined below.

(i) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of o financial instrument will fluctuate becouse of
changes in market prices, other than those arising from interest rate and foreign exchange risk, whether
those changes ore caused by facters specific to the individual financial instrument to its issuer or factors
affecting all financiol instruments traded in the market.

The Company is exposed to equity securities price risk becouse of investments held by the Company ond
classified on the statement of financial pesition as financial assets ot fair value through profit or loss, The
Company is not exposed to commodity price risk as it had no assets nor obligations that expose it to that risk
at the reporting date. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Company
diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Board. A
significant component of the Company's investments in equity of other entities are publicly traded on the
Zimbabwe Stock Exchange and the Victoria Falls Stock Exchange.

The table below summarises the impact of increases / (decreases) of the Zimbabwe Stock Exchange and
Vieteria Falls Stock Exchange equity index on the Company's post-tax profit for the year and on equity. The
analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index increases / (decreases) by §% with all other
variables held constant and all the Company's equity instruments move according to the historical
correlation with the index:

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024
Impact on post-tax profit IWG ING IWG ING

Increqase in market price [+5%) [3 263 231 270 726 7 823 809 362
Decrease in market price [-5%) 3263 231 (270 725) (7 823 809) [2&2)
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

L

k.1

Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Market risk

Market risk measurement techniques (continued)
(1) Price risk (continued)

Post-tax profit for the year would increase/(decrease) as a result of gains/(losses) on equity securities
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Eair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rotes,

The Company takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates
on both its fair value and cash flow risks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may
reduce losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. The Board sets limits on the level of mismatch of
interest rate repricing that may be undertaken, which is monitored daily by Finance. The Company analyses
its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and various scenarios are simulated.

The Company is exposed to various risks with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on its financial position and cash flows.

The table below summarizes the Company's exposure to interest rate risk. Included in the table are the
Cempany's financial assets and financial liabilities ot carrying amounts categorised by the earlier of
contractual repricing or maturity dates.
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ABC Asset Management [Privats) Limited Bl

Motes to the financial stataments
for the yeor ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

L

.1

Financial risk management [continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(ii) Cash flow and fair valus interest rate risk (continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The table below illustrates the impact of a possible 50 basis points
interest rate movement:

Inflation adjusted Historical cost

2024 2023 2024 2023

IWG IWG IWG IWNG
Shift in yield curves of +50
basis points (232 712) (3 209 457) (232 12) (667 889)
Percentage of shareholders
equity (+50 basis points) -0.14% -0.02% -0.14% -0.02%
Shift in yield curves of -B0
basis points 232 e 3 209 457 23z Tz 667 BBY
Percentage of shoreholders
equity [-50 basis points) 014% 0.02% 0.14%6 0.02%
(iif) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk arising from fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and their effect on future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in o currency thot is not the
Company's functional currency.

The Group Risk Department sets limits on the level of exposure by currency and in aggregate.

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to the USS.

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to an increase or decrease of 0.6% [+50 basis points) in
the Zimbabwe dollar against the USS with all other variables held constont. 0.5% [+50 basis points)
represents management's assessment of the reasonable possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding monetary items impacted by movements in foreign currency
exchange rates and is calculoted by adjusting the translation of foreign currency amounts ot the period end
for a 10% change in foreign currency exchange rates.
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Motes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued]

L Financial risk monagement [continued)

41  Financial risk factors [continued)

[iii) Foreign exchange risk
Impact of change in foreign currency exchange rates Inflation adjusted and
historical cost
2024 202%
10% increase 10% decrease
IWG IWG
! Impact of profit before income tax [ 2584 2098

This method used for deriving sensitivity information and significant variables did net change from previcus

year.
2024 2024
10% increass 10% decrease
The following table details the Company's USS assets and liabilities: usD usb
Balances with banks 23 808 19478
| Provisions 3928 321y
! Net position 19 878 16 264

42  Capital risk management

! The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as o
going concern in order to provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stokeholders, ond, to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends poid to shoreholders, return capital to
shoreholders, issue new shares or sell ossets to reduce debt where relevant.

The Company strives to comply with the regulatory capital requirements set by the Securities Exchange
Commission of Zimbabwe. As at 31 December 2023, the Company complied with the risk adjusted capital
requirement of ZWG 797 028 and liquid capital requirement of ZWG 100 or thirteen weeks operating expenses
cover whichever is higher. The risk-based approach covers a wide spectrum of risks which include price,
credit, liquidity ameongst other risks.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

4.2

4.3

Financial risk management [continued)

Capital risk management [continuad)

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023
IWG IWG IWG IWG
Shareholders’ equity 170 497 981 236 762 607 170 590 195 41y 023
Minimum capital requirement 500000 500 000

The Company's capital is above the minimum capital requirement.
Fair value of financial assets

Observable inputs reflect market doto obtained from independent sources and uncbservable inputs reflect
the Company's market assumptions. These two types of inputs hove created the following foir value
hierarchy:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets [equity securities) is based on quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Company is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, overthe-
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an

instrument ore cbservable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities.

The hierarchy requires the use of cbservable market data when available. The Company considers relevant
and obsarvable market prices in its valuations where possible.

The Company's financial assets are carried ot fair value. None of the Company's financial liabilities were
carried at fair value.

The following table presents the Company's assets thot are measured ot foir value at 31 December. Included
under level 3 are unquoted equities and unquoted property units. A reconciliation of these level 3 financial
assets has been provided under notes 7.2 and 7.3 respectively.
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Notes to the financial statemants
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

43

Financial risk management [continued)
Fair value of financial assets [continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December 2024
Listed equities

Unlisted equities
Unquated property units
Gold coins

Financial assets at fair value threugh profit or loss

As at 31 December 2023
Listed equities

Unlisted equities
Unguoted property units
Guold coins

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December 2024
Listed equities

Unlisted equities
Unquoted property units
Gold coins

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As ot 31 December 2023
Listed equities

Unlisted equities
Unquoted property units
Gold coins

&7
Inflation adjusted

Leval 1 Level 3 Total
IWG WG WG

36 911 404 - 3691 604%

- Tem 37 5N

3 175 137 983 176137 983

1272175 - 1272175

38183 779 175 455 574 213 639 353

&9 04y 203 - &9 044 203
- &73 727 &673 727

- 234 120 366 234 120 356

1763 037 - 17463 037

70 807 240 234 794 083 306 601 323

Historical cost
Level 1 Level 3 Total
IWG IWG WG
36 91 604 - 3691 604
: 317 59 317 5
- 175 137 983 176137 983
1272175 . 1272176
38183 779 175 455 574 1 9 363
4134 262 - 134 262
- 40 342 40 342
- 14 018 735 1 M8 736
106 6468 E 106 568

4 239 820 14 069 077 18 298 897
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MNotes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

&3

Financial risk management [continued)
Fair value of financial assets (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
statement of financial position date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily Zimbabwe Stock Exchange and Victoria
Falls Stock Exchange listed equity securities classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of
observable market data where it iz available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If
one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

The following toble shows the valuation techniques used in measuring level 3 category fair values for financial
instruments as well as significant unobservable inputs used.
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ABC Asset Management (Privats) Limited n

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

4.3

Financial risk management [continued)
Fair value of financial assets (continued)

Comparison of cammying amounts and fair values for assets and liabilities not held at fair value

The fair value is an estimate of the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market paorticipants at the measurement dote. The foir value of assets and
liabilities not measured at fair value on the entity’s statement of financial position are summarised os follows.

Financial assets

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, financial assets ot amortised cost and cash and cash
equivalents closely opproximotes their fair value as the instruments are short term in nature and the impact of
discounting is not significant.

Financial liabilities
The carrying amounts of financial liabilities closely approximate their fair values. The impact of discounting is

not significant due to the market terms [rotes and tenure] available and because the instruments are short
term in nature,

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents IWG IWG IWG IWG
Balances with banks 2 468 677 14191120 2 468 &77 849 T
Term deposits 174 2 509 174 174
2 4148 B61 14194 029 2 L468 B51 849 916

Term deposits mature within 90 days from crigination date and earn interest ot rates ranging between 80%
and 84% (2024: 80% and 85%).

Inflation adjustad Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023
Trade and other receivables IWG IDNG IWG IWG
Fee ond commission income
receivable 20612346 2936 695 2051236 175 844
Less: allowance for expected
credit losses [3629) (60 609) (3 627) (3 629)

Met fee and commission income
receivable 2 047 607 2 876086 2 D47 &07 172 215
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

& Trade and cther receivables [continued)

Inflation adjustad Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023
IWG IWG IWG IWG
Prepayments 23g 127 6786 238127 40é
Other receivables 34 429 160 969 34 429 9 639

2 5627 163 3 043 84 2 627 163 182 250

Maturity profila

Due within 1 month 2389036 3037055 2389036 181 854

Due between 1 month ond 3

manths 238127 46786 238127 L0&
2 627 163 3 043 84 2 627 163 182 260

Allowance for expected credit losses

As at 1 January &0 609 194% 30 3629 2uz22

Expected credit losses charge . 20160 < 1207

Effects of inflation (66 980) (163 922] 2 .

As ot 31 December 3 629 &0 609 3 629 3 629

The Company does not hold any collateral as security for the trade receivables balances.
The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired balances.

Allowances for expected credit losses

Expected credit losses allowances - (20 160) 5 [1207)

As at 31 December - (20 140) - [1207)
Inflation adjusted Historical cost

7 Financial assets at fair value 202% 2023 202% 2023

through profit or losa IWG IWNG IWG IWG

Equities 37 2291956 &9 717 930 37 229196 L 174 594

Listed equities (Note 7.1) 36 911 604 59 Ot 203 36 911 604 W 134 262
Unlisted equities [Note 7.2) 317 691 673 727 317 691 40 342




ABC Asset Management (Privats) Limited 73
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)
7 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss [continued)
Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023
IWG IWG IWNG IWG
Unquoted property units (Note 7.3) 175 137 983 234 120 356 175 137 983 14 018 735
212 367178 303 B38 286 212 367 178 18 193 329
71 Investment in listed equities
As ot 1January 69 044 203 L3 T4l B9S L 134 2562 545 092
Additions 22145730 2710 558 8 364 763 101 884
Disposals (19 912 907) (3 546 069) (7 512 408) (97 112)
Fair value adjustments (42 W1 354) 26 029 Bbb 23 89 073 3 578 086
- Realised fair value adjustments & 7567 963 131843 & 757 963 78 551
- Unrealised fair value adjustments (49 199 317) 24 7 723 17101 10 3 499 B35
Foreign exchange gains 8 075 932 105 242 8075 932 & 302
As at 31 December 36 91 604 69 044 203 36 911 604 4134 252
72  Investment in unlisted equities
As at 1 January 673 727 1460 223 40 342 18 308
Unrealised fair value adjustments (356 136) (795 496] 277 249 22 034
As at 31 December 317 591 &73 727 7 EN 40 342

Investment in unlisted equities comprises a 6.24% equity shareholding in Astra Industries Limited. The fair
value has been determined by an independent valuation performed by a professional services firm.

73 Investment in unquoted property units

As at 1 January 234120 356 103 987 757 14 018 736 1296 760
Additions 10 608 767 & BL4S 094 15 695 312 206 947
Fair value adjustments (69 w51 140) 123 683 606 145 423 936 12 517 028
- Unrealised fair value adjustments | (69u91140)|l 123583505 |[ 145423 936 || 12 517 028 |

As at 31 December 175137 983 234 120 356

176137 983 14 (018 735
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ABC Asset Management [Privats) Limitad

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continuad)

7 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss [continued)

7.3 Investment in unquoted property units [continued)

The fair value of unquoted property units is derived from an allocation of the valuation of the underlying

properties oz determined by independent professional valuers at the reporting date, based on each property

unit owner's holding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented within 'investing activities’ in the statement

of cash flows.

The fair value of all listed equity securities is based on their current bid prices in an active market. The
underlying properties from which the property units volues are derived, are based on valuations performed

by independent professional valuers.

The above equity securities and property units are managed and their perfformance evaluated on a fair value

basis in occordance with the Company's risk management strategy and information about the closses of

financial instruments is reported on that basis.

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2024 2023
8 Gold coins IWG IWG IWG
As ot 1.January 1763 037 105 568 Q728
Unrealised fair value adjustments (420 862) 982 339 1166 &07 95 B40
As at 31 December 1272175 1763 037 1272176 105 668




ABC Asset Management [Private) Limitad 7B
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)
9 Financial asssts ot amortised cost [continued)
Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2024 2023
IWG IWG IWG IWG
Financial assets ot amortised cost
As at1 January * 7250292 - 90 344
Maturities - (20 270 994) - (797 &11)
Interest accrued . 13 298 061 - 17 660
Foreign exchange gains - 14 202 481 - &89 607
Effects of IAS 29 o (14 480 830) - ¥
As at 31 December = =
Allowance for expectad cradit losses
As at 1 January - 96 876 - 1207
Expected credit losses charge - [96 B78) - [1207)

As at 31 December

A rights offer was issued by Econet Wireless Zimbabwe Limited ["EWZL") in 2017, offering members , pro rata
to their existing sharehelding, 82 ordinary shares for every 100 shares already held, ot a subscription price of
USDS$0.06 per share. Each rights offer share was linked to a debenture with an issue price of USDS0.04645
each and a coupon rate of 5% per annum thus giving o redemption value of USD30.06252 each on maturity

on 30 April 2024,

The Company holds 5 531 541 EWZL debentures. In 2021, EWZL sought and obtained further approvals from
the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe for the early redemption of the debentures in Zimbobwe dollars caleuloted at
the prevailing interbank foreign rate. The early redemption was conducted over an extended period of time
as per Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe Regulations, from April 2021 to April 2024, The Company elected to hold
the debentures until end of April 2024. At the beginning of April 2024, EWZL mode an announcement of it's
intention to do a rights issue to raise foreign currency required to redeem all the debentures.
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ABC Asset Management [Private) Limitad

MNotes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

1 Income tax

1.1 Income tox expense

Current tax expense (Note 11.2)
Deferred tax expense [Note 11.3]

Income tax expense

The income tax on the Company's
prefit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the basic tax

rate as follows:

[Loss)/profit before income tax

Notional income tax on profit for

the year at a stotutory rate of

26.75% (2023: 24.72%)
[tems toxed at different rates

Expenses not deductible for tax

purposes

Permanent differences as a result

of 145 29 application
Income tax expense

Effective tax rate
1.2  Current tax liabilities

As at1January

Current tax expense for the year

[Mote 11.1)

Effects of changes in foreign

exchange
Effects of 145 29 application

As at 31 December

78
Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2024 2023
IWG IWG IWG IWG
1667106 25674 858 (1452 187) 154178
[+ 969 403) 20177 &34 30782 066 2063 BB
(2 312 297) 22 752 b42 29 329 879 2218 O4é
(68 575 923) 157 292120 185 806 050 1507120
(17 558 558) 38 882 812 47 845 058 3725 601
(26960 951) (60 530 956) (25 960 951) (3 624 493)
Tukb 772 35 354 010 7 uhb 772 2116 938
32 861440 9 045 B7S £ f
(3 312 297) 22 7562 642 29 329 879 2218 D46
4.83% 18.64% 15.79% 18.64%
2 478 101 (464 952) 148 384 (5 794)
16567 106 2 574 858 (1452 187) 154178
(120 176) . (120 176) 2
(5 439 010) 368 195 . .
(1423 979) 2 478 101 {1423 979) 148 384




ABC Asset Management [Private) Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

1.3

Income tax [continued)

Deferred taxes

The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities is os follows:

Deferred tax assets

- Deferred taox assets to be

recovered within twelve months

Deferred tax liabilities

- Deferred tox liabilities to be
recovered after more than twelve

months

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

The movement on the deferred tax
account is as follows:

As at 1 January

Charged to profit or loss [Mote 11.1)

As at 31 December

The deferred tox expense included
in profit or less comprises the

following temporary differences:

Accelerated tax depreciation

Fair wvalue odjustments on
financial assets ot fair value
through profit or loss

Unrealised foreign exchange gains
Expected credit loss allowances
Unused tax losses

Profit share provision

Shared services costs provision

79
Inflation adjusted Historical cost

2024 2023 2024 2023

IWG IWG IWG IWG

448 725 8 710 387 600 919 521 564
448 725 8 710 387 600 919 621 564
(33692284 (46 923 349) (33 671 440) (2 810 020)
(33692284 (46 923 349) (33 671 440) (2 810 020)

33 243 659] 38 212 942 [33 070 522 [2 288 456

(38 212 962) (18 035 278) (2 288 456) {224 688)
4 949 403 (20 177 684) (30 782 066) (2 063 848)
(33 243 559) (38 212 962) (33 070 522) (2288 456)
(21547) 18 634 (3 636) 105
13 169 998 (24 660 830) (30 654 364) (2537 414)
82 613 1403 439 (301 421) (2650)
- (71996) - (897)
. (62 225) - (775)
(7 460 580) 4 2665 417 (253 618) 414 668
(801081) 929 878 332 873 61106
4969403 __ [20177683) __[(30782066) ___[2063868)



Theceoo e8] (o6 mmeee]  Ues Gee) (66n he)

990 LEE EL 866 691 E1 Ely 28 lehg 12)
(&€ £26 9h) (£06 g 94) (h6h BOK) (296 2)
Teweteeon]  (cosuaon]  (hensOR]  [e&éa)
lLaL 8ee 92) (oes 099 92) 6Eh EO | ES Bl
(268 89 12) (ec0 198 61) (ee6 us1) (983 12)
OMZ OMZ OMZ OMZ
1=eL 850 Jo Jyoud sujob ebuoyoxe wewdinbe
yBnouyy enjoa 4oy uBjesoy pes)peuun uo uonopesdep
JD §}955D0 |DIJUDUL XD} pajoua|a0dy
uo syuswnen(po
enjoA Jjo4
peisn[po uopoju|
08

hZ02 Jequasag |g 0 sy

550| 4o yyoud oy [pabioys) f pappail
#zoz Fuonuor | 1o sy
hZ0g Jequesag |g pepus Jnag

£202 Jequadaq |g 10 sy

50| Jo yyoud oy [pebioyo] / peyipasd
g20z2 fuonuop | jo sy
E20g sequiedaq] |g pepus ioag

s81)|IqD}| XD} PaLIsye(

[penunuoa) sexo) peilejeq

(penunuod) xo3 awoau|

E'L

1

(penupuas) hz0z Jequedsaq |g pepue Joefl eyy Joy

FJUBISYDYE |DIDUDUILE BYJ OF S810HN

peywn (a1oaug) JusweBouoyy Jessy DY



S2L ghh Lig Eh2 419 502

(299 192 8] (180 108) GEEELTA) .

BEOLE 2a2HhO L G40 999 £ "

nmmmﬁm 262 fhl | G0 999 L =

hOIS0 S BLB 626 S92 H (986 1L) (522 29)

EIEGhR E hilh kil B 00H E Q66 1L SceEe?
M oM DM DOME ONE

|00y uoisiaoud 53500 uoisiaoud SBIUDMO||D $50]

§801AM6S paIDyS BUDYS Joid ypess pagoediy 58580 XD} pasnup
pessnipo uonoyu)

8

h20z2 Jequisdaq |£ 1o Y

s50| 40 yyoud oy [pabuoya) / payipasd)
wZog fuonuop | o sy
h20g 1equieda g pepus ol

E20g Jequiaaaq |E 10 sy

s50| 4o jyoud o3 (pabioya) / paypain
g20z fuonuor | 30 sy
£202 Jequada( |g pepus Joay

£§1085D XD} paiIeje(]

(penupuoo) sexoy peuejeq  ElL

[penunuos) xo3 ewoou L

(penunuos) 420z sequiedsq g pepus sosfl ey Joj
EJUBLIBIDLE [DIDUDULY AL} O} SS}ON

peywr [seaugd) yusweBouop yessy Ogy



TOh 125 EE) Teoemece]  Uee gee) (650 £)
[0zh 198 0E] [w9€ 9545 OF] (12h 10€E] [9e7 €]
(020 018 2) (ing gL 2) (09h h2) [64)
Tocooise  LhGGeLe) {09 he) &)
(696 6£9 2) [hih £EG 2] (D59 2] =l
(190 0c2) (£2) gh2) (o8 12) (w21)
DOMNZ OMZ OMNZ OMNZ
o0y ss0| Jo Jyoud suiob eBuoyoxe  juswdinbe
yBnouyy enjoa 4oy uBjeuoy pesipeuun)  uo uopoioeudep
10 598550 |DDUDUY XD} pejoiBjesoy
uo syuswnsnipo
enjoA JID4
1809 |[DIUOYEIH

28

h202 Jequiasag |g 1o sy

550] 4o Jpoud oy paBioyn
hgog fuonuor | o sy
hZ07 Jequiede(] | POpUs JDBy

£202 4aquadag |g 1o sy

50| Jo jyoud oy paBioyn
£202 fuonuor | 1o sy
EZ0E Jequuedaq |E pepus Joag

S91|iqp!| X0y paLuajeg]

(renupuos) sexoy peueyeg £

[penunuoa) xo3 ewoou| i

(penunuoo) 420z sequisds( |g pepus Josfi sy Joj
SjUBLISYDYS |DISUDUY BYY 0} SejON

pejiwi (e3oad) JueweBoupyy yessy DAY



fl6 009 hh GAE 515 502 z
GoE &/ El8 2EE (815 £52) g
w9G 129 I£9 29 £E£0 45Hh -
H94 12g 160 29 “EE0 650 -
160 941 SO0L 1S 859 94 l68] [8i{]
Eih Gh 92h 1 SLE 2h L658 =174
OMZ OMZ OMZ OMZ OMNZ
o8] uoisinoid 53500 uoisiaoud £00UDMO||D $50|
S801AI8S paUDYS aJDys Joug }peso pejoedxy $8580] XD} pasnup

1800 [DOUOYBIH

£

202 4aquieda |g 10 5y
850] 40 3yoid 0} paypai)

hzZng fuonuep | o sy
H20g 18quese] g Pepue Joag

£202 Jaquanag |g 10 sy

£50| Jo yyoud o} pajpais)
g20g fuonuep | jo sy
£202 18qwedeq | Pepue 108,

§]885D X0} PaLIe)e(]

(penunuoo) sexoy pauegeq gLl

(penupuod) xo3 ewoou] |

(penunuoo] 420 Jequesaq g pepue Joafi eyy Joy
S3UBWISIDYS [DIOUDULY B O} SBION

pajwn [=30aug) JuawsBouny jessy Dgy



=

ABC Asset Management [Private) Limitsd

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

12 Share capital

121  Authorised share capital

4 000 ordinary shares with a
nominal value of ZWG 1 each

122  lesued ond fully paid

2 198 ordinary shares with a
noeminal value of ZWG 1 each

an
Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023
IWG IWG IWG IWG
4 000 4 000 4 000 4 000
10 8467 10 867 1 1

The unissued share capital is under the control of the directors subject to the limitations imposed by the
Zimbabwe Companies and Other Business Entities Act [Chopter 24:31) and the Articles of Association of the

Company.

123 Share premium

Share premium

13 Trade and other payables

Value-odded-tax
Amounts due on property units

purchases
Amounts due on property units

development
Directors’ fees

Deferred income
Other payables

Maturity profile

Due within 1 month

Due between 1 month and 3 months

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 202% 2023
IWG IWG IWG IWG
1026 984 1026 984 83 83
Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023
IWG IWG IWG IWG
268 228 263151 258 228 16 767
1676739 81980 14676739 4909
86 286 1424 318 85 286 85 286
706 087 - 42 279
- 159 806 - 9569
381760 - 381750 -

2 402 013 2 635 34 2402 013 167 800

2316727 1211027 26727 72514
85 286 1424 31y 85 284 85286

2402 013 2 6356 34 2 402 013 157 800



ABC Asset Management (Private) Limited

Motes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

13 Trade and other payables [continued)

Bb

Amounts due on property units development relate to outstanding payments on the development of the
underlying property os at reporting date, The development costs are allocated to the holders of the property
units and invoiced pro-rata to the unit holding. The underlying property to which the development costs relate
was 99% complete according to the developers certification ot the reporting date. The corresponding entry is

recorded as fair value gains in profit or loss.

1L Provisions

Audit fees provision [Note 14.1)

Shared services costs provision
(Note 14.2)

Profit share provision [Note 14.3)
Leave pay provision [Note 14.4]

i1  The movement in the oudit fees
provision is as follows:
As at 1 January
Arising during the year
Effects of |1AS 29

As at 31 December

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
202% 2024 2023
IWG WG IWG IWG
591 04y 1088 47 591 044 &5 166
2 146186 1862 760 2 146 186 1M 539
798 116 31011706 798 115 1856 929
4l 507 5467 490 Sl 507 33 980
4479862 34530102 L 479 852 2 067 604
1088 147 246 751 &6 167 3075
406 888 022 2719 486 525 887 62 082
(407 385 125) (1878 090) . -
591 Ol 1088 147 591 0l 66 167

The Company recognises a provision for audit fees as a present legal cbligation arising from a statutory

requirement to have an audit performed by independent auditors in occordance with the Zimbobwe
Compaonies and Other Business Entities Act [Chaopter 24:31) and the Zimbaobwe Asset Management Act
[Chapter 24:25). The accrual is done monthly and is based on an estimated audit fee determined by fees

billed in previous financial years, changes in business operations and other economic foctors,

™2  The movement in the shared
services costs provision is os

follows:

As at 1 January
Arising during the year
Effects of A3 29

As at 31 Dacember

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024
IWG IWG IWG IWG
18462 761 - 115639 -
731034 069 4 886 967 2034 647 11539
(730 750 &4k4) (3 023 198) = -
2146 186 1862 761 2145186 111539




ABC Asset Management [Private) Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

4 Provisions [continued)
4.2  The movement in the shared services costs provision [continued)
The Company recognises a provision for shared services costs rendered by the Group which include the
suppert of information technology systems and hardware, utilities such as water, electricity and office space
amongst others. The provision is measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the
expenditure which is subsequently recognised through intercompany transactions at a later date and
transferred to "amounts due to group companies” for settlement,
Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023
IWG IWG IWG IWG
4.3 The movement in the profit share
provision is as follows:
As ot 1 January 3101 705 13 756 788 1856 929 171419
Ariging during the year (1068 814) 28 148 913 (1058 814) 1686 510
Effects of IAS 29 [29 164 778) (10 893 996] g s
As at 31 December 798 116 1011 798 115 1856 929
The Company recognises a provision for profit-share based on 10% of net profit attributable to the
Company’s shoreholders. The provision is recognised because of past practice that has created o
Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2024 2023
IWG IWG IWG IWG
™% The movement in the leave pay
provision is as follows: 567 491 216 090 33 780 2693
Arising during the year 208 217 494 137 697 959 919 313n
Paid during the year (166 784) [10u1) [69 392) [24)
Effects of IAS 29 (204 684 694) (1019 165) - =
As ot 31 December FulL 507 567 491 gLy BO7 33980

The Company recegnises o provision for short-term employment benefits such as annual leave that are
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related services and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the obligations are settled,
Leave is earned and occrued on o monthly basis ot o rate of one twelfth of ene’s annual leave entitiement.
Accrued or accumulated annual leave will only be encashed and poid to employees upon the termination of
employment. In case of resignation or termination, the employee shall be entitled to be paid for all leave doys
outstanding to the employee’s credit as ot the effective date of such resignation or termination.
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MNotaes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

16.1

16.1.1

16.1.2

Related party transactions

The Company is controlled by ABC Holdings (Zimbabwe) Limited (incorporated in Zimbabwe), which owns
100% of the ordinory shares. The ultimate parent company is Atlas Mara Limited through ABC Heldings
Limited (incorporated in Botswana), which owns 100% of the ordinary shares of ABC Holdings (Zimbabwe)
Limited.

A number of transactions are entered into with reloted parties in the normal course of business. These include
loans, funds managemeant and investment transactions.

Investment management services

ABC Asset Management [Private] Limited entered into several investment management agreements with
related parties on an arms length bosis, under terms and conditions similor to those granted to external
clients. There was no allowance for expected credit losses against any related party balances for the year
ended 31 December 2024 [2023: ZWG nil). Investments ploced on behalf of related parties and the requisite
management fees earned during the year were as follows:

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023

Directors and other  key WG IWG WG IWG
management personnel [and close
family members)
Management fees earned = 20 ¥ 12
Associated entities
Funds under management
ABC Pension Fund 122 629 072 819 607 122 629 072 43 077
ABC Holdings Zimbabwe 4 943 364 33 040 4 943 354 1978
ABC Easy Loans 1337 9 1337 1
ABC Stockbrokers 3 500 230 23 3% 3 600 230 140

131073 993 B76 050 131 073 993 52 457
Management fees earned
ABC Pension Fund 2 765 64b 2890 433100 16
ABC Holdings Zimbabwe 426 799 105 607 &4 680 b 181
ABC Eosy Loans 8930 . 1398 2476
ABC Stockbrokers 159 009 120 670 24 901 307y

3 369 384 229 067 526 079 1 246
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continuad)

Related party tronsactions [continued)

16.1.3 Transactions with related parties

16.2

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023
Income IWG IWG NG IWG
Non-member institution rebates 99 345 L0 528 37 479 3 U%
Expenses
Transaction costs on equity trades - 30 370 - 1411

The income relotes to commissions received from ABC Stockbrokers [Privote] Limited in the form of non-
member institution rebates for equity trodes. The expenses represent transaction costs incurred os a result of
ABC Stockbrokers [Private] Limited providing brokerage services to the entity. These transactions occurred in
the normal course of business and are entered at arms length.

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
Amounts due from group 2024 2023 2024 2023
S WG IWNG IWG IWG
ABC Stockbrokers (Private] Limited 32537 63 080 32637 3777

The balances due from group companies relate to outstonding management fees and non-member institution
rebates from equity trades with ABC Stockbrokers (Private) Limited. There are no stipulated payment terms
and the balance is classified as eurrent.

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2024 2023

WG IWNG IWNG IWG
The movement in the amounts due
from group companies is analysed
as follows:
As at1January &3 080 1380 an 17
MNon-member institution rebates 99 345 L0 628 aryre 6077
Repayments (22 845) (101 374%) (8 719) [2317)
Effects of 145 29 (107 O43]) 122 445 s =

32 537 63080 32 637 3777
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

16 Related party transactions (continued)
16.1.3 Transactions with related parties [continued)

16.3 Amounts due to group companiea

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023
WG IWG IWG IWG
African Banking Corporation of
Zimbabwe Limited @721 486 L 951127 Q721486 297 065
The balance iz denominated in
DWG, attracts interest ot a rote of
&60% per annum and is payable on
demand.
The movement in the omounts due
to group companies is analysed as
follows:
As at 1 January 4 961127 1616 601 297 065 20132
Funds utilised 36 396 06O 12 599 931 13 891 622 287 963
Repayments (1 704 0&7) (482 &41) (4 w67 201) (11 030)
Effects of IAS 29 (19 931 624) (B 771 764) - -
Q@ 721 4B 4951127 @ 721 4BS 297 065

The balances due to group companies arise from bridging finance for short term business opportunities and
for bridging funding gops that may arise due to delays in receipt of management fees from clients.

16.4  Key management compensation

Key management includes the executive directors and senior management. The compensation paid or
payable to key management for employee services is shown below:

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024
IWG IWG IWG IWG

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits B 4356 40y 126 506 2050 955 & 870
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023

16 Borrowings IWG IWG IWG IWG

Current . - . -

The mevement in borrowings is as

follows:

As at 1.January - 633 B94 - 7899

Interest charged [Note 22) - 22233 - 508

Principal repayments - (306 936) - (7 008)

Interest repayments - [61302) - {1399]

Effects of 1AS 29 - (287 889) g 5

As at 31 December - - i .

Borrowings relate to a short term loan obtained from Africon Banking Corporation of Zimbabwe Limited for
working capital requirements. The loan is for a period of 24 months from dote of drawdewn and bears interest
at a variable base rate plus margin of 5% per annum. The variable interest rate as ot 31 December 2024 was
165% per annum (2023: 200%).

The Company has pledged a portfolio of publicly listed shares amounting to ZWGU5 893. However, African
Banking Corporation of Zimbabwe Limited recognizes only 50% (ZWG22 946) as the security vaolue. The
pledge of the shares was a condition precedent to the coming into effect of the agreement.

All berrowings are denominated in ZWG.

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023
Borrowings are analysed as fellows: IWG WG IWG IWG

Due between 3 months and 12

maonths = E
Greater than 1year - - . .
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

Inflation adjusted Historical cost

2024 2023 2024 2023

7 Shareholder's loan IWG IWG IWG IWG
As at 1 January b 374 989 17 358 260 261967 216 296

Loans capital repayment (378 635) - (225 182) -
Interest repayment (101 014) - (80 807) -
Interest charged [Note 22) 76 000 2002 981 14 022 45 671

Effects of IAS 29 (3970340) (14986 262 ; -

As at 31 December - L 374 989 - 261967

The shareholder's loon was extended to the Company by ABC Holdings (Zimbabwe] Limited to support
working capital requirements and to enhance investment returns and performance of both the Company and
the Group. The loan is for o period of 24 months from the date of drawdown and bears interest ot a rate of
256% per annum [2023: 25%). The loan is unsecured. The principal amount and interest accrued shall be
settled as a bullet payment on 31 December 2024. The loan was advanced on 31 December 2021, The lender
however reserves the right ot its sole discretion to recall the loan at any time. The shareholders' loan is
therefore payable en demend and is classified as current.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

18

19

Fees and commission income
Inflation adjusted Historical cost
202% 2023 2024
IWG IWG IWG IWG
Management fees 16 032 886 26 923734 Fa66TN 521 Bu7
Non-member institution ["NMI”) rebates 165 638 292179 13 839 1314
16 198 523 27 215 M3 2 380 410 933 161

The Company provides investment management services to third parties, which invelves the Company
making allecation, purchase and sale decisions in relation to a wide range of financial instruments. Assets
held in a fiduciory copacity are not included in these financial statements. The Company recognises
management fees over time as the services are provided. Non-member institution ["NMI"] rebates are earned
from trading transactions and are recognised ot a point in time.

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2024 2023
Other income IWG IWG IWG IWG
Scheme of reconstruction 1165 815 - 1063 256 -
1155 815 - 1063 266 -

EcoCash Holdings Zimbabwe Llimited (EcoCash] pursuant to the Scheme of Reconstruction that was
approved by members at the Extroordinary General Meeting [“EGM"] held on the 17th of April 2024 approved
the distribution of the 521 8461 057 Econet shares [due under the Scheme of Reconstruction). Econet were to
transfer 49 118 547 Econet shares to EcoCash to liquidate any liabilities on its balance sheet and to meet its
capital expenditure requirements, leaving o balance of 472 42 510 Econet shares to be distributed to
members in the manner set out as follows: B0% of the remaining consideration of 472 742 510 Econet shares
due under the Scheme of Reconstruction, namely 236 371 255 Econet shares shall be distributed by Econet
directly to members as serip [the shares consideration], meaning that each shareholder shall receive
0.067807 Econet shares in serip form for each EcoCash share held as at the record dote. The ZWG cash
equivalent of the remaining 236 371 266 Econet shares, calculated using the 30 Day VWAP of each Econet
share for the trading peried ending on the date of payment [cash consideration) shall be paid by Econet
directly to shareholders of the Company as at the record date in lieu of Econet shares. Consequently, each
member sholl receive the ZiG cash equivalent of 0.067807 Econet shares for every EcoCash share held as at
the record date.

ABC Asset Monagement had 2 216 O4Y4 EcoCash shares at the time of the reconstruction, which entitled the
Company to 150 264 Econet shares and ZWG 1063 256 recorded under other income.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)

Inflation adjusted Historical cost

2024 2023 202% 2023

20 Operating expenses IWG ING IWG IWG
Administrative expenses 7814 637 9882224 4932 4E8 3566 510
Advertising and marketing 277 368 1737 681 17 D89 B9 793
Audit fees 1077 353 2 928 909 570 982 101 69%
Consultancy fees 2 287 588 4140 816 1471226 172283
Depraciotion charge [Note 10] 24 578 34 822 508y &0
Staff costs [Note 20.1) 1119 21 L0 987 &1 4 850 061 1063 162
Directors' remuneration [Note 20.2) 2863933 3831654 1611933 175 617

25 bl 748 63643 677 ___ 13 625 867 1939109

20.1 Staff costs

Solaries and wages L4218 381 5469 316 27415 75 636
MNaotional Social Security Authority

Scheme costs (Note 20.3) 4B 694 45188 31096 2208
Pension costs [Note 20.3) 289231 283 945 201 480 10 268
Profit share and bonus 4124 57y 32 231127 308 799 761 34k
Medical aid costs 334170 724 455 195738 26 4i2
Leave pay 1256 068 756 209 891086 31324
School fees allowances L6 874 T63 799 168 761 215692
Other 434 309 693 61 267 997 354N

119291 40 987 671 L 850 061 1063 1652

20.2 Director's remuneration

Neon-executive directors fees 2 863 933 3 8316564 1611933 176 617

20.3 Post employment benefits

The Company and its employees contribute to the National Social Security Authority Scheme. This is a social
security scheme which was promulgated under the National Social Security Act [Chapter 17:04). The
Company’s cbligations under the scheme are limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time.

Included in profit or loss are the Company's contributions for the year.

The Company makes contributions to a defined contribution plan which is administered externally and for
which both the employee and employer contribute. All employees of the Company are members of the ABC

Pension Fund. Total empleyer contributions during the year were as follows:
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 [continued)
20 Operating expenses [continued)
20.3 Post employment benefits [continued)
Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024
IWG IWG IWG IWG
MNational Social Security Authority
Scheme costs 45 694 45188 31096 2208
Pension costs 289 231 283 966 201480 10 268
334 925 49 153 232 676 12 473
21 Finance income
Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023
IWG IWG IWG IWG
Interest on term deposits 171996 10 385 165 636 192
Interest earned on debentures - 13 298 061 - 17 661
171 996 13 308 436 165 636 17 863
211 For the stotement of cashflows the
interest received is analysed as follows:
Interest on term deposits 171996 10 385 155 636 192
Interest earned on debentures - 13 298 051 - 17 661
171996 13 308 436 156 636 17 853
Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 202% 2023
22 Finance costs IWG IWG IWG IWG
Interest on borrowings [Note 16) . 22233 n 608
Interest on shareholder's loan [Note 17) 76 000 2002 981 14 022 L5 &71
75 000 2 026 214 1 022 L4é 179
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22  Finance costs [continued)
Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024
IWG IWG WG IWG
221 For the stotement of coshflows the
finance costs are analysed as follows:
Interest paid on amounts due to group
companies [Note 15.3) 78 000 . 14 022 3
Interast paid on borrowings [Note 18] = 61301 1399
75 000 _ 61301 14022 1399
23  Contingencies and capital commitments
The Company had no significant contingencies as at 31 December 2024 [2023 : ZWG nil).
The Company had ne significant capital commitments as at 31 December 2024 (2023 : ZWG nil).
24  Asset management and unit trusts activities
Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023
IWG IWG IWG IWG

Funds under management

1981268 200 3372 603 082

1981268 200 201 945 840

Analysis of the funds under
management portfolio:

Equities 1066 220 932 1618176957 1045 220932 96 893 674
Property units 8165693002 14615299 548 815 593 002 96 721439
Cash and cash equivalents 81162 242 139107 785 81162 242 B 329 42
Maoney market investments 19 302 024 19793 19 302 024 1185

Total funds under management 201 945 840

1981268200 3372603083 1981268200

The Company provides asset management and unit trust services to pension funds, individuals, trusts and
other institutions, whereby it holds and manages their assets and receives a management fee for providing
these services.

These assets are recorded off-statement of financial position in accordance with paragraph 21 of the First
Schedule of the Zimbabwe Securities and Exchange Act (Chapter 24:25).
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Notes to the financial statements
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24  Asset management and unit trusts activities (continued)

In conducting the fund manaogement business, the investments below
ware made with fellow group companies:

Inflation adjusted Historical cost
2024 2023 2024 2023
IWG IWG IWG IWG
Cash and cash equivalents deposits b8 879 52 531 58 879 3145

Events after the reporting date

There were no material events, aofter the statement of financial position date that have a bearing on the
understanding of these financial statements.

Environmental, social and governance

In line with IFRS 81 [General Requirements for Sustainability-related Disclosures) and IFRS 82 [Climate-
related Disclosures], we confirm that sustoinability-related risks and opportunities are integrated into our
governance, stratequ, risk management, and performance metrics.

Our Board oversees ESG integration, with management accountable for implementing policies across our
operations and portfolios. Climate-related financial risks, both physical and transitional, are regulorly
ossessed and integrated into investment decision-making and risk management processes.

We disclose material ESG information, including relevant emissions data and progress toward our climate
targets, concerning globally recognised fromeweorks such as TCFD and SASB. To evaluate performance and
progress:
» We disclose Scope 1, 2, and, where opplicable, Scope 3 emissions related to both our operations and our
investment portfolio.
* ESG ratings and climate risk scores are systematically monitored and integrated into performance reviews
» We have committed to net-zero emissions by 2080, with interim targets for 2030 aligned to the Science

Based Targets initiative [SETI) principles.

Metrics and targets used are subject to continuous improvement and refinement following industry best
practices and ISSB guidance. This ESG complionce statement is prepored in good faith and reflects our
current understanding of material sustainability risks and their financial implications.
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Notes to the financial statements
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27

Money laundering and terroriet financing

Programme effectiveness statement

ABC Asset Management confirms that its Anti-Money Loundering and Counter Financing of Terrorism
[AML/CFT) programme remains compliant with the requirements of the Money Laundering and Proceeds of
Crime Act [Chapter 9:24], as well as regulatory guidance from the SECZ and the Financial Intelligence Unit.

The Company's policies, procedures, and internal controls are based on o comprehensive AML/CFT risk
assessment and are tailored to the specific risks associated with the Company's operations. These measures
have remained adequate and responsive to changes in the risk landscape.

Throughout the reporting peried, the AML/CFT framework operated effectively. Menitoring systems
functioned os intended, staff received oppropriote training, and no significant control breaches were
identified. Internal reviews confirmed the ongoing effectiveness and adequacy of the programme.

Risk assessment process

In line with regulatory requirements, ABC Asset Monogement hos established o comprehensive risk
assessment framework to identify and evaluate the risks related to money laundering (ML) and terrorist
financing (TF] specific to its operations. This framework ensures that the Company can effectively identify,
mitigate, and manage potential ML/TF risks across all areas of its business. Internal controls and procedures
are routinely reviewed and updated to address emerging ML/TF risks and to remain compliont with
applicable lows and regulations.

Az part of the audit process, the effectiveness of the risk aossessment framework is evoluated, including
whether the Company has implemented appropriate and adequate policies, procedures, and controls to
manage ML/TF risks. The assessment also determines whether these measures have operated effectively
throughout the reporting period.

The Company's strong commitment to sound risk management underpins its compliance with anti-money
loundering and counter-terrorism financing regulations, thereby supporting the integrity of its operations and
financial reporting.

Capital narrations

ABC Asset Management framework is based on the Securities and Exchange Commission of Zimbabwe's risk-
based caopital adequacy approach as provided in the Copital Adequacy Directive for Securities Market
Intermediaries of July 2017. As at 31 December 202% the adjusted liquid capital stood ot ZWG 170 195 266
against total capital requirements of ZWG 38 669 109 resulting in a surplus of ZWG 131 526 158,
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28  Capital narrations [continued)

Adjusted liquid capital

Ordinary share capital

Preference share capital and distrubutable reserves
Share premium account

Audited retained earnings or accumulated losses
Unaudited profit or loss

Owners equity

+ Shareholders loans

+ Guarantees received

Total copital resources

Goodwill

Caopitalised development costs

Licensees, softwares

Trademarks and similar rights

Guarantees provided

Available capital resocurces

less: llliquid assets

Fixed assets [net of related secured loans)
Investments in unlisted securities

Adjusted liquid capital

Total capital requirements

13 Weeks [or Fixed technology expenditure requirement)
Counterparty Risk Requiremeant [CRR)

Position Risk requirement [PRR)

Settlement Risk Requirement [SRR)

Other risks

Tetal capital requirements

Capital surplus

98

1

83
170890

170 690 196

170 690 196

(72 185)
(317 591)

170 200 W19

3 342194
3 048 4o
32 278 440

38 669109

T 131631310







